
 

129578672.1  

JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
405 Main Street, Hillsboro, MO 63050 

LIVE BROADCAST AVAILABLE VIA – YouTube 
@https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCACuytmq2kUAI65z3AYsmYw 

September 28, 2023, 4:15 PM TENTATIVE AGENDA 
 

NOTICE TO BOARD AND ALL ATTENDEES: 
The Board’s meeting will be open for physical attendance by the public and the public may virtually attend 
the meeting via the above-referenced link. In addition, anyone wishing to have a comment read to the Board 
during the meeting should email same to the attention of the Chair at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance to communications@jeffcohealth.org. Requests for information contained in records may be 
referred by the Chair to the Custodian of Records to process as a Sunshine Law request. 
   

I. Call to Order – Mr. Timothy Pigg, Chair 
 

II. Roll Call – Ms. Jennifer Pinkley, Recording Secretary  
 

III. Reading of the JCHC Mission, Vision and Purpose – Mr. Dennis Diehl, Trustee 
1. Mission: JCHD will champion positive health outcomes and behaviors through innovative programs 

and community engagement. 
2. Vision: Advancing the health and safety of Jefferson County 
3. Purpose of the Health Center – RSMO 250.050 - The JCHD is established, maintained, and operated 

for the improvement of health of all inhabitants of Jefferson County.  
 

IV. Call for the Orders of the Day – Mr. Timothy Pigg, Chair 
1. Approval of Agenda 
2. Welcome of Guests 

 
V. Approval of Minutes and Expenditures – Mr. Timothy Pigg, Chair 

1. Approval of August 15, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of August 2023 Expenditures 
3. Approval of August 2023 Electronic Payments 
4. Pre-Approval of October 2023 Electronic Payments 
 

VI. Director’s Report – Ms. Kelley Vollmar 
1. Community Services Report – Ms. Jeana Vidacak, Community Services Manager 
2. Communications Report – Ms. Brianne Zwiener, Health Communications Manager 

 
VII. Old Business – Mr. Timothy Pigg, Chair 

1. Act on recommendation to adopt JCHC Sunshine Law (Chapter 610 RSMo) Policy, as presented at July 
2023 meeting, with revisions as requested by Trustees prior to this meeting. 

 
VIII. New Business – Mr. Timothy Pigg, Chair 

1. Set November and December Board Meeting Dates 
2. Town Hall Meetings at the discretion of the Chairperson.  
3. Directive on Update and Information Report from the Director or her Designee 
4. Act on Resolution Regarding Enacting, Adopting Resolutions, Policies, Procedures and/or Ordinances 

governing the JCHC. 
5. Extension of Executive Director Contract 
6. Entertain topics for next agenda by Trustees (limit to 3 topics, requires a second to place item on 

next agenda) 

mailto:communications@jeffcohealth.org


 

129578672.1  

 
IX. Public Comments – "Pursuant to Resolution 05-15-01, any person who desires to make public comment 

shall, prior to the meeting, submit a speaker's request to include the speaker's name, address and 
subject matter to the Board.  Upon being recognized by the Board Chair, such person may speak on any 
topic relevant to the business of the JCHC as set forth on the speaker request form.  In the interest of 
fairness to other persons wishing to speak and to other individuals or groups having business before the 
Board, each speaker shall limit comments to five (5) minutes; however, if a large number of people wish 
to speak, the speaking time may be shortened by the Board Chair to no less than three (3) minutes per 
speaker.  Each speaker may only speak once and may not yield/credit his/her time to another 
speaker.  The Board Chair shall let the speaker know that their time has expired, and the speaker shall 
stop speaking.  Each person who desires to make a public comment shall do so in an orderly manner and 
shall not engage in conduct that disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of the 
Board meeting. Any person who so disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the meeting, shall, at the 
discretion of the Board Chair, be subject to the removal from that meeting."  
 

X. Closed Session –  
A part of the meeting with closed meeting, closed record and closed vote may be conducted by the Board 
of Trustees relating to legal action, causes of action or litigation involving the Jefferson County Health 
Department [610.021 (1)], any confidential or privileged communications between the Board of Trustees 
of the Jefferson County Health Department or its representatives and its attorneys [610.021 (1)], Hiring, 
firing, disciplining or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when personal 
information about the employee is discussed or recorded [610.021 (3)] and records which are protected 
from disclosure by law [610.021 (14)]. 
 

XI. Adjournment 
 
*Underlined items will require a vote ANY ITEMS MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF SEQUENCE AT THE DISCRETION OF THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES. ANY AGENDA ITEMS NOT PREVIOUSLY RESOLVED MAY BE BROUGHT UP FOR DISCUSSION 
AND APPROPRIATE ACTION AT THE DISCRETION OF THE BOARD. IN THE CASE OF AN EMERGENCY OF THE 
JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND WHERE A VOTE IS REQUIRED AND A QUORUM OF THE BOARD IS 
PRESENT, LESS THAN A QUORUM OF THE BOARD MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THE VOTE VIA TELEPHONE, FACSIMILE, 
INTERNET, OR ANY OTHER VOICE OR ELECTRONIC MEANS. 



 

129386831.1 1 
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

405 Main Street, Hillsboro, MO 63050 

LIVE BROADCAST AVAILABLE VIA – YouTube 

@https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCACuytmq2kUAI65z3AYsmYw 

August 15, 2023 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Chairperson Pigg called the meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson County Health 

Department to order at 3:03pm .  

ROLL CALL  

Tim Pigg, Chairperson - Present 

Dennis Diehl, Vice-Chairperson – Present 

Tammy Stidem, Secretary-Treasurer – Present  

Dr. Amber Henry, Member – Present 

Susan (Suzy) Davis, Member – Excused 

OTHERS ATTENDING   

☒Kelley Vollmar, Executive Director   

☒Steve Sikes, Deputy Director Operations  

☒Jennifer Pinkley, Deputy Director Admin.  

☒Christi Coleman, Legal Counsel 

 

 

 

☒Others in attendance:

 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Dr. Henry made a motion to approve the agenda. Ms. Stidem seconded. Hearing no discussion, 

the motion carried, and Chairperson Pigg announced the motion had passed. 

OLD BUSINESS  

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Act on Director’s recommendation to approve Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement 

Brianne Zwiener, Public Communications Officer 

Jaclyn Brown, ASPEN Coordinator 

Derrick Good 



 

129386831.1 2 
 

Dr. Henry made a motion to approve the Intellectual Property Contribution Agreement. Mr. 

Diehl seconded. Hearing no discussion, the motion carried, and Chairperson Pigg announced 

that the motion had passed, 4-0. 

 

Act on Director’s recommendation to approve Services Agreement 

Mr. Diehl made a motion to approve the Services Agreement. Dr. Henry seconded the motion. 

Hearing no discussion, the motion carried, and Chairperson Pigg announced that the motion 

had passed. 4-0. 

 

Ms. Vollmar first thanked the Board for taking the time to come in for a special meeting today. 

We have been developing the ASPEN program for several years and have worked steadily to get 

it ingrained within the Jefferson County school system. There has been a lot of interest and a lot 

of great feedback in terms of our work with the schools and as well as starting to reach out to 

first responders.  

 

ASPEN has been covered by grants up to and including through this current stage but what we 

have hit at this point of time is a due to the limitations of being only able to serve within our 

own county the limitation of growth of what ASPEN is capable of doing. The sustainability of the 

program has reached a limit. JCHC can allow ASPEN to separate into a 501c3, and in return 

Jefferson County Health Department will retain the services to be able to have for Jefferson 

County schools so all of our schools and our recipients will continue to be able to receive those 

services. This will allow funding outside of the County to help support the program. The 

program has received numerous grants within the County, but as this starts to expand further 

there are outside agencies that have an interest in being able to support this and be able to 

support the mental health care needs of their children and their communities as well.  

 

We have looked into what opportunities there are as far as sustainability of the program put 

together a draft transition plan on how this could happen. In the end this will greatly benefit not 

only the use of ASPEN within the state of Missouri but then as well it will also benefit the JCHC 

with continued access to this vital program, while not carrying the full weight and burden of 

trying to continue as this program is growing exponentially.  

 

This is a tremendous program, and it is a tremendous asset to our youth. We are prepared for a 

Jefferson County specific staff member to continue the work within our county coordinating 

services, continuing to update the resource directory, and work with all of our contracts. This will 

also enable Jackie to step back from her role with Jefferson County Health Department and take 

on a separate role with the 501c3 - supported outside funding sources. 

 



 

129386831.1 3 
 

Mr. Good stated this gives the ASPEN program the ability to serve on its own and serve children 

outside of the county. 

 

Ms. Coleman states that by statute we are only allowed to provide services to Jefferson County 

residents because that is where our tax base is, so this would allow the program to be utilized 

outside of the County and remove the restrictions that are on the program right now. We are 

not health care providers; we are public health - there is a large distinction in that we have 

limited means of providing health care to residents. So theoretically moving forward and asking 

them to go beyond what we have the ability to do would allow the program, through its own 

self-governing and funded 501c3, to provide more actual services, which several Board members 

have expressed a desire to see happen.  

 

Chairperson Pigg read Resolution 23-8-15-1, which approves the 2 Agreements previously 

approved individually by those present, unanimously. 

 

At a special meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson County Health Center 

(JCHC) held on the 15th day of August, 2023, at which a quorum was present, the 

following resolution was adopted, 

 

WHEREAS, Jefferson County Health Center (“JCHC”) operates as the Local Public Health 

Agency for residents of Jefferson County, Missouri, and has been the recipient of grant 

funding in order to develop the Intellectual Property (IP) needed to create and distribute 

the ASPEN Program as a program of the JCHC, and 

 

WHEREAS, the ASPEN Program has received many accolades throughout the State of 

Missouri and inquiries regarding provision of such services to other Missouri schools, and 

 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of mental health initiatives for all Missouri residents, JCHC is 

desirous of allowing the ASPEN program to be utilized across the state by its developers, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the creator and developer of the ASPEN Program has created a 501(c)(3) 

organization, ASPEN Network, Inc., in order to provide services throughout the State of 

Missouri, and  

 

WHEREAS, the JCHC finds that no taxpayer funds have been used to develop the ASPEN 

Program as a program of JCHC, but that all costs have been provided through specific 

grants for the program, and  

 

WHEREAS, JCHC desires to transfer the IP developed through grant funds for the creation 

of the ASPEN Program, to the ASPEN Network, Inc, so that these vital resources may be 

used to improve mental health access for citizens of the State of Missouri. 



 

129386831.1 4 
 

 

WHEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants contained herein 

and for other consideration, the JCHC hereby approves the Services Agreement, attached 

hereto as Exhibit A. Further, the JCHC hereby approves the Intellectual Property 

Contribution and Assignment Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit B. Further, the JCHC 

hereby directs its Executive Director to prepare a Program Transition Plan to effectuate the 

transfer of the properties outlined in Exhibit B.  

 

Dr. Henry made a motion to approve Resolution 23-8-15-1. Mr. Deihl seconded. Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Pigg, yea; Mr. Diehl, yea; Ms. Stidem, nay; Dr. Henry, yea. Motion carried and Chairperson 

Pigg announced the motion had passed. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

ADJOURN  

Dr. Henry motioned to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Diehl seconded. Motion carried unanimously 

and Chairperson Pigg announced the motion had passed. Meeting adjourned at 3:49 pm. 

 

 

 

____________________________  

Secretary-Treasurer 



Jefferson County Health Department
Check/Voucher Register - Monthly Check Register

From 8/1/2023 Through 8/31/2023

Date Check Number Name Description Amount

8/3/2023 64603 Abila MIP Subscription 623.87 
8/3/2023 64604 Alicia Davis Mileage Reimbursement - Staffing 

Coverage
12.10 

8/3/2023 64605 Jackson Hambrick Per Diem 74.45 
8/3/2023 64606 CITY OF HILLSBORO W/S DEPT Water & Sewer 84.32 
8/3/2023 64607 Kristy Kaltenbronn Mileage Reimbursement 22.22 
8/3/2023 64608 Missouri Center for Public Health 

Excellence
June IOPSLL Data Development 6,442.97 

8/3/2023 64609 Missouri Department of Health & Senior 
Services

CPU Time & Access to Birth & Death 
Certificates

1,318.90 

8/3/2023 64610 Midwest Elevator Co. Maintenance of Arnold Elevator 346.73 
8/3/2023 64611 Optum Account Fee - HSA Monthly - June 2023 55.25 
8/3/2023 64612 Provident Health Brianna Massie Contracted Consulting - 

July 2023 Services
307.68 

8/3/2023 64613 REUTHER FORD Oil Change and Repairs 168.38 
8/3/2023 64615 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. Imovax Rabies Vaccine 660.22 
8/3/2023 64615 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD AR Vaccines 11,420.32 
8/3/2023 64615 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD HB Vaccines 12,399.38 
8/3/2023 64616 Robin Summers Mileage Reimbursement 59.62 
8/3/2023 64617 United States Postal Service Annual PO Box Renewal 332.00 
8/3/2023 64618 Jeana Vidacak Per Diem 82.79 
8/7/2023 64619 ALLSCRIPTS Payerpath Claims Mgmt & Call Service 104.58 
8/7/2023 64620 AT&T Mobility Cell Phones & Wifi Access 3,693.32 
8/7/2023 64621 Chestnut Health Systems Contractor for LPHDI 11,306.00 
8/7/2023 64621 Chestnut Health Systems Contractor for LPHDI - April 2023 5,687.00 
8/7/2023 64621 Chestnut Health Systems Contractor for LPHDI - January 2023 5,653.00 
8/7/2023 64621 Chestnut Health Systems Contractor for LPHDI - March 2023 5,713.00 
8/7/2023 64622 Get Healthy DeSoto Agency Promotion and Support of 

Community Partners
250.00 

8/7/2023 64623 H5-Hillsboro LLC September 2023 Rent (365 2nd St) 2,000.00 
8/7/2023 64624 Here We Grow Child Care & Learning 

Center
2023 Permit Fee Overpayment 5.25 

8/7/2023 64625 Route 3 Films Create a Film to Build Awarenessof 
ASPEN - 50% of Film Production

7,500.00 

8/9/2023 64626 ALPHA MEDIA, LLC Lead Program Education and Awareness 318.00 
8/9/2023 64627 BENCO DENTAL Benco Technician Visit 796.80 
8/9/2023 64627 BENCO DENTAL Dental Van Supplies 592.85 
8/9/2023 64627 BENCO DENTAL Program Supplies 7,484.66 
8/9/2023 64627 BENCO DENTAL Senior Van Program Supplies 21.06 
8/9/2023 64628 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. Replacing End of Life Desktop PCs on 

the Youth Van
4,304.22 

8/9/2023 64629 Cure MD Charges for Provider License, Inventory, 
Reporting, and Faxing

1,930.00 

8/9/2023 64630 Alicia Donathan Per Diem/Transportation 426.27 
8/9/2023 64631 Environmental Resource Associates Lab Quality Control - HPC Proficiency 

Samples
221.09 

8/9/2023 64632 HAWKS Septic Pumping 285.00 
8/9/2023 64633 HealthLink Admin Fee 0.52 
8/9/2023 64634 Jennifer Heister Per Diem/Transportation 319.40 
8/9/2023 64635 JEFFCO FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE Annual Fire Extinguisher Maintenance 424.70 
8/9/2023 64636 Mahn Plumbing Inc. Replace Toilet in Center Bathroom 

Across from Employee Lunch Room
540.00 

8/9/2023 64637 Missouri Department of Public Safety Annual Elevator Operating Permit 25.00 
8/9/2023 64638 Mary Melissa Parmeley Per Diem 53.24 
8/9/2023 64639 POGUE QUALITY CONSTRUCTION Labor for Design Work for Arnold 

Conference Room
240.00 

Date: 9/6/23 03:23:42 PM Page: 1



Jefferson County Health Department
Check/Voucher Register - Monthly Check Register

From 8/1/2023 Through 8/31/2023

Date Check Number Name Description Amount

8/9/2023 64639 POGUE QUALITY CONSTRUCTION Labor to Readjust Arnold Storage Room 
Door

60.00 

8/9/2023 64640 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD AR Vaccines 8,583.00 
8/9/2023 64640 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD HB Vaccines 10,057.98 
8/9/2023 64640 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. Jeffco Rabies Vaccines 20,136.75 
8/9/2023 64641 Jacob Schwab Mileage Reimbursement 35.31 

8/15/2023 64642 ACE FLEET MAINTENANCE, LLC Repair & Maintenance of Wellness Van 60.99 
8/15/2023 64643 ALLSCRIPTS Payerpath Claims Mgmt & Call Service 307.48 
8/15/2023 64644 Anne-Marie Denny St. Louis - Detroit : CIT International 

Southwest
277.95 

8/15/2023 64645 BENCO DENTAL Program Supplies 198.92 
8/15/2023 64646 Megan Bridgman Mileage Reimbursement - Medicaid Miles 107.25 
8/15/2023 64647 Canon Financial Services Inc Copier/Printer Lease 2,753.31 
8/15/2023 64648 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. Replacing End of Life Desktop PC's on 

the Youth Van
377.30 

8/15/2023 64649 Chestnut Health Systems Chestnut Contractor for LPHDI - May 
2023

9,561.00 

8/15/2023 64650 Taxation Division July 2023 Death Certificates 786.00 
8/15/2023 64651 Jefferson County Health Department FSA - July 2023 886.65 
8/15/2023 64651 Jefferson County Health Department FSA - June 2023 886.65 
8/15/2023 64651 Jefferson County Health Department FSA - May 2023 886.65 
8/15/2023 64652 LEADER PUBLICATIONS Community Education and Support 622.00 
8/15/2023 64653 Shari Lexa Mileage Reimbursement - 193 Medicaid 

Miles/104 Non-Medicaid Miles
163.35 

8/15/2023 64654 Missouri Education Solutions Investigation - Brown & Davis 6,517.00 
8/15/2023 64654 Missouri Education Solutions Investigation - Pinkley & Davis 1,911.00 
8/15/2023 64654 Missouri Education Solutions Investigation - Sikes & Davis 1,911.00 
8/15/2023 64654 Missouri Education Solutions Investigation KV & Davis 7,105.00 
8/15/2023 64655 NueSynergy Inc Cobra Admin 3Q23 168.75 
8/15/2023 64656 Occupational Research & Assessment Subscription to ME Database and 

Support
1,758.00 

8/15/2023 64657 Personal Assistance Services EAP Service/ SEP 2023 - FEB 2024 2,923.20 
8/15/2023 64658 Thurman, Howald, Weber, Senkel & 

Norrick, LLC
Correspondance Receipt and Review, 
Telephone Conference

50.00 

8/15/2023 64659 Amy Voyitenko Mileage Reimbursement - 305 Medicaid 
Miles/91 Non-Medicaid Miles

217.80 

8/23/2023 64660 4imprint Lead Program Promotion at Community 
Events

506.83 

8/23/2023 64661 ALPHA MEDIA, LLC Community Education on Adult 
Immunizations

308.00 

8/23/2023 64662 Americom Copier/Printer Overage 16.87 
8/23/2023 64663 Architect Now Jotform Bug: Jotform PDF Download 

Broken, Production Release and Final 
Testing

2,250.00 

8/23/2023 64664 BECKER DENTAL LAB, INC. Becker Dental Lab Statement - July 1,876.00 
8/23/2023 64665 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. Replacing Two End of Life Desktops for 

Nurse Practitioner
2,442.73 

8/23/2023 64666 Celeslie Overpayment of 2023 F&B - Walkthru 1.50 
8/23/2023 64667 Christine Chadbourne Mileage Reimbursement 4.40 
8/23/2023 64668 Chestnut Health Systems Jim Wallis Contracted Consulting July 

Services
1,584.00 

8/23/2023 64669 Clean Harbors Environmental Services, 
Inc.

Medical Waste & Sharps Disposal 1,309.82 

8/23/2023 64670 CLIA Laboratory Program CLIA Certificate 2 Year Renewal 240.00 
8/23/2023 64671 Melissa Harris Mileage Reimbursement 12.10 
8/23/2023 64672 CITY OF HILLSBORO W/S DEPT Water & Sewer 120.54 

Date: 9/6/23 03:23:42 PM Page: 2



Jefferson County Health Department
Check/Voucher Register - Monthly Check Register

From 8/1/2023 Through 8/31/2023

Date Check Number Name Description Amount

8/23/2023 64673 Josh Varner Consulting Staff Professional Development Day 
Training

3,500.00 

8/23/2023 64674 La Piana Consulting Strategic Planning 5,000.00 
8/23/2023 64675 Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP Board Governance - 7.6 Hours 2,128.00 
8/23/2023 64675 Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP Board Member Communications - 2.3 

Hours
644.00 

8/23/2023 64675 Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP General Counseling - 3.2 Hours 896.00 
8/23/2023 64675 Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP Labor and Employment - 0.1 Hours 28.00 
8/23/2023 64675 Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP Real Estate and Transactional Matters - 

5.9 Hours
1,072.00 

8/23/2023 64676 MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL Controls to be Split Between Hillsboro & 
Arnold

552.70 

8/23/2023 64676 MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL Immunizations 776.27 
8/23/2023 64677 Missouri Department of Health & Senior 

Services
CPU Time & Access to Birth & Death 
Certificates

1,400.70 

8/23/2023 64678 Mobile Health Clinics Association Registration - 2023 Mobile Healtchare 
Association

749.00 

8/23/2023 64678 Mobile Health Clinics Association Registration - 2023 Mobile Healthcare 
Conference

2,098.00 

8/23/2023 64679 MISSOURI PUBLIC HEALTH 
ASSOCIATION

Registration for Conference 600.00 

8/23/2023 64680 Optum AC-Optum-Plan Fund 52.00 
8/23/2023 64681 Prime RV Services, LLC Removed and Replaced Front Slide 

Topper Material
450.00 

8/23/2023 64682 PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY DIST. #1 Water 49.19 
8/23/2023 64683 REUTHER FORD Oil Change and Repairs 139.66 
8/23/2023 64684 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD Vaccine - AR 17,663.89 
8/23/2023 64684 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD Vaccine - HB 4,984.89 
8/23/2023 64684 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. JCHD Vaccines - HB 13,033.58 
8/23/2023 64685 United Access St. Louis South-7 Repair of Wheel Chair Lift on Senior Van 1,000.00 
8/24/2023 64686 ALPHA MEDIA, LLC Community Education on Adult 

Immunizations
318.00 

8/24/2023 64687 Anne-Marie Denny Per Diem 112.93 
8/24/2023 64688 LAMP Interpreter Services 364.60 
8/24/2023 64689 MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL Mobile Wellness Van Supplies 438.77 
8/24/2023 64690 ROYAL PAPERS, INC. Office Supplies 730.65 
8/31/2023 64691 ALLIANZ LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

OF NORTH
Employee Voluntary Insurance 100.00 

8/31/2023 64692 Americom Copier/Printer Overage 50.00 
8/31/2023 64693 Arch Images New Building Architect Service 59,572.57 
8/31/2023 64694 Architect Now ArchitectNow Work for 7/10/2023 to 

7/23/2023
585.00 

8/31/2023 64695 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. Replacing Two End of Life Desktops for 
Nurse Practitioner

233.89 

8/31/2023 64695 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. Wellness Van Printer Toner 49.42 
8/31/2023 64696 Custom Insurance Services Inc Cyber Secuirty Insurance & Liability 

Insurance to Support ASPEN
4,475.25 

8/31/2023 64697 Cure MD Charges for Provider License, Inventory, 
Reporting, and Faxing

198.00 

8/31/2023 64698 Christina Daniele Mileage Reimbursement 19.25 
8/31/2023 64699 Ellis Battery Batteries for Building Equipment 29.40 
8/31/2023 64700 Jefferson County Health Department FSA 886.65 
8/31/2023 64701 Lakota Enterprises LLC ASPEN Website Design and Build Hours 

Up To 08/25/2023
1,350.00 

8/31/2023 64702 Missouri Center for Public Health 
Excellence

Data Development/July 2023 6,308.68 

Date: 9/6/23 03:23:42 PM Page: 3



Jefferson County Health Department
Check/Voucher Register - Monthly Check Register

From 8/1/2023 Through 8/31/2023

Date Check Number Name Description Amount

8/31/2023 64703 Route 3 Films Final Payment to Create Film to Build 
Awareness about ASPEN Resources

7,500.00 

8/31/2023 64704 SANOFI PASTEUR, INC. Imovax Rabies Vaccine for Connie 
Marshall and Julie Thompson

990.33 

Report Total 325,420.51 

Date: 9/6/23 03:23:42 PM Page: 4







Date Check Number Name Description Amount

7/24/2023 PO 9328-COR Monday.com Program Manager Website - Annual Subscription  $        576.00 
7/24/2023 PO 9344 Missouri EMS Conference Mobile Integrated Healthcare Summit July 31-Aug 3  $      1,485.00 
7/25/2023 PO 9377 Walmart Community/SYNCB Program Supplies for Senior Van  $        434.91 
7/27/2023 PO 9371 Title X National Reproductive Health Conference Title X Education and Training  $        350.00 
7/27/2023 PO 9382 Title X National Reproductive Health Conference Title X Education and Training  $          50.00 
8/1/2023 PO 8997 Hilton Hotels Hotel Stay for SAVA Pre Conference Workshop in New Orleans  $      1,288.24 
8/1/2023 PO 9385 Southwest Airlines Airfare/2023 Mobile Healthcare Conference  $      1,659.84 
8/2/2023 08022023 WIX WIX.com Yearly JCDPC Website Renewal Through Wix  $          49.00 
8/2/2023 303665 Curve Dental Curve Hero Dental SaaS  $        670.49 
8/3/2023 24937 Crisis Intervention International CIT International Conference August 14-16  $        550.00 
8/3/2023 PO 9207-1 Double Tree Principles of Epi in Person Course  $        533.65 
8/3/2023 PO 9358 Walmart Community/SYNCB Water Testing  $          50.02 
8/3/2023 PO 9397 Greater Saint Louis Dental Society Mid-Continent Dental Congress Conference  $      1,384.00 
8/4/2023 E0300OJBJP MicroSoft Microsoft Subscriptions  $      1,204.97 
8/4/2023 E0300OJBJQ MicroSoft Power Automate Subscription  $          15.00 
8/4/2023 E0300OJCKS MicroSoft Exchange Online Subscription  $          48.00 
8/4/2023 E0300OJCKT MicroSoft Microsoft Subscriptions  $          18.00 
8/4/2023 E0300OJFDA MicroSoft Office 365 E3 Subscription  $          92.00 
8/9/2023 PO 9387 Industrial Instrument Works Lab Quality Control - Recalibration of Fluke Thermometer  $        103.80 
8/9/2023 PO 9403 Southwest Airlines Travel/2023 MIP Conference  $        376.96 
8/9/2023 PO 9411 Walmart Community/SYNCB Binder and Divider Tabs for ASPEN  $          41.36 

8/15/2023 PO 9414 National Network of Oral Health Access National Network of Oral Health Access Conference  $      1,331.00 
8/15/2023 PO 9414-Flight United Airlines Flight Cost  $        207.80 
8/16/2023 PO 9440 United States Postal Service Postal Box for ASPEN During Transitional Timeframe  $          83.00 
8/17/2023 PO 9431 Savvy Food Safety, Inc. Answer Sheets for ServSafe Managers for the Remainder of 2023  $      1,630.00 
8/18/2023 PO 9041-2 Home Depot Parts Needed to Repair Buildings  $          95.64 
8/21/2023 PO 9037-4 ADOBE Adobe Software Subscription  $        290.84 
8/21/2023 PO 9397-1 Greater Saint Louis Dental Society Mid-Continent Dental Congress Conference  $        280.00 
8/21/2023 PO 9424 AMERICAN PUBLIC HEALTH ASSOCIATION APHA Annual Meeting and Expo November 12-15  $      1,015.00 
8/22/2023 PO 9392 Missouri Department of Public Safety Division of Fire Safety Annual Elevator Operating Permit  $          25.75 

Total 15,940.27$ 

Jefferson County Health Department
August 2023 VISA Expenses

Page:  1



Invoices: 3725895, 3725896, 3725897, 3725898, 3725899

Check #: 64675

Check Date: 8/23/2023

Invoice Date Invoice # Paid By Check # Description Amount

8/11/2023 3725895 64675 General Counseling - 3.2 Hours  $       896.00 
8/11/2023 3725896 64675 Real Estate and Transactional Matters - 5.9 Hours  $    1,072.00 
8/11/2023 3725897 64675 Board Governance - 7.6 Hours  $    2,128.00 
8/11/2023 3725898 64675 Labor and Employment - 0.1 Hours  $         28.00 
8/11/2023 3725899 64675 Board Member Communications - 2.3 Hours  $       644.00 

Total $ 4,768.00$      

Invoices: 342658

Check #: 64544

Check Date: 8/15/2023

Invoice Date Invoice # Paid By Check # Description

7/31/2023 342658 64658 Correspondance Receipt and Review, Telephone Conference  $         50.00 

Total $ 50.00$           

August 2023 Legal Expenses

Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP

Thurman, Howald, Weber, Senkel & Norrick, LLC



Jefferson County Health Department
Balance Sheet 

As of 8/31/2023
Unuaudted(In Whole Numbers)

Current Year

Assets

   Current Assets

            Cash Operating Account 1,381,386.00 

            Cash Cafeteria Account 7,820.00 

            Petty Cash 150.00 

            Cash Operating Trust 287,263.00 

            Cash Operating Reserve 5,469,790.00 

            Accounts Receivable 566,681.00 

            Accrued Accounts Receivable 70,134.00 

            Taxes Receivable 2,678,545.00 

            Prepaid Insurance 35,490.00 

            Prepaid Postage 2,124.00 

         Total Current Assets 10,499,384.00 

   Long-term Assets 3,894,359.00 

      Total Assets 14,393,743.00 

Liabilities

   Short-term Liabilities

            Walmart Credit Card 23.00 

            Lowes Credit Card 55.00 

            UMB VISA 13,142.00 

            Enterprise VISA (2,883.00)

            Accounts Payable 69,739.00 

            Employee Benefits Payable 21,121.00 

            Accrued Wages 182,559.00 

            Accrued Payroll Tax 13,355.00 

            Deferred Revenue 26,885.00 

            FSA 7,956.00 

            Deferred Inflow 181,095.00 

         Total Short-term Liabilities 513,047.00 

      Total Liabilities 513,047.00 

Net Assets

   Beginning Net Assets 13,408,485.00 

   Current YTD Net Income 472,211.00 

      Total Net Assets 13,880,697.00 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 14,393,743.00 

Page:  1



Jefferson County Health Department
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

From 8/1/2023 Through 8/31/2023
Unaudited(In Whole Numbers)

Current Period Actual 
(August)

Current Year Actual 
(January - August)

YTD Budget 
(January - August)

YTD Budget Variance 
(January - August) Total Budget 

Percent Total 
Budget Remaining

Revenue

Contract, Grants, Donations 458,651.00 2,440,278.00 2,700,030.00 (259,752.00) 3,856,030.00 (37)%

Tax Revenue 376,067.00 2,754,179.00 2,754,179.00 0.00 4,258,447.00 (35)%

Earned Revenue 127,888.00 1,068,929.00 1,005,553.00 63,377.00 1,347,767.00 (21)%

Total Revenue 962,605.00 6,263,386.00 6,459,762.00 (196,376.00) 9,462,244.00 (34)%

Total Revenue 962,605.00 6,263,386.00 6,459,762.00 (196,376.00) 9,462,244.00 (34)%

Expenditures

Wages & Benefits 469,577.00 3,683,405.00 4,195,609.00 512,204.00 6,107,766.00 40 %

Contractual 75,210.00 549,322.00 403,035.00 (146,287.00) 472,593.00 (16)%

Program Supplies 64,472.00 471,933.00 729,876.00 257,942.00 1,066,147.00 56 %

Telecommunications 21,410.00 159,521.00 89,549.00 (69,972.00) 131,705.00 (21)%

Postage & Shipping 564.00 2,529.00 4,636.00 2,107.00 6,454.00 61 %

Facility & Equipment 32,479.00 315,502.00 398,525.00 83,023.00 624,651.00 49 %

Fleet 11,971.00 76,694.00 105,410.00 28,716.00 152,399.00 50 %

Travel 5,732.00 30,634.00 43,046.00 12,412.00 58,867.00 48 %

Professional Development 24,642.00 157,543.00 251,496.00 93,953.00 344,165.00 54 %

Marketing 1,375.00 16,558.00 62,782.00 46,224.00 86,031.00 81 %

Election Expense (1,909.00) 125,839.00 100,000.00 (25,839.00) 100,000.00 (26)%

Capital Improvements 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 300,000.00 100 %

Total Expenditures 705,524.00 5,589,480.00 6,483,963.00 894,483.00 9,450,778.00 41 %

Total Expenditures 705,524.00 5,589,480.00 6,483,963.00 894,483.00 9,450,778.00 41 %

Net Revenue Over Expenditures 257,081.00 673,906.00 (24,202.00) 698,108.00 11,466.00 

Page:  1



Executive Director’s Report 
JCHD Board of Trustees Meeting  

September 28, 2023 
 

1.1 MISSION MOMENT 

1.2 STRATEGIC UPDATES 
• Internal Updates 

o Mobile Wellness Unit: The wellness unit will be placed on GovDeals next month. JCHD staff 
are currently working to ensure an appropriate appraisal for asking price and are removing 
equipment from van. Representatives from GovDeals are coming 9.28.23 to meet Operations 
staff and determine the best strategy for sale.  Planning has started to acquire a new full-size 
unit.  Wellness Team staff attended the Mobile Healthcare Conference in September and will 
report findings at the October Board meeting. 

o Staff Recruitment follow-up: The Clinical team has been able to hire two registered nurses 
since last meeting but are still trying to fill an opening for a medical assistant. Work has 
started on a compensation study to determine market rates for JCHD positions. It is 
anticipated that the process will take 6-8 weeks to complete. 

o Finance Committee Meeting: The Finance Committee met with the Executive Director, 
Comptroller and Deputy Director of Administration on September 5th to review accounting 
processes and procedures as well as individual budget tracking of contracts and grants. The 
creation of a revenue dashboard was requested by the committee for presentation to the full 
Board.  The Comptroller will present the new resource at the 9.28.23 meeting. 

o Personnel Committee Meeting: The Personnel Committee met on September 6th to review 
requested updates to the Executive Director’s contract that runs through June 30, 2024. The 
committee will take requests under review and bring committee recommendations to the full 
Board for review prior to the contract renewal vote.  

1.3 STATUTORY AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE UPDATES 
• Vaccines for Children Program VFC Site Visit on 09/06/2023 – see attached. 

1.4 ED PUBLIC RELATIONS ACTIVITIES 
• Missouri Public Health Conference (in Columbia) – attendee and co-presenter. 
• MOALPHA Board Meeting (virtual) 
• Jefferson County Community Partnership (at JCCP in Festus) 
• Guest of Sue Curfman (Compass) at Jefferson County Growth Association 35th Anniversary Celebration 

(Villa Antonia, Hillsboro) 



1.5 ITEMS OF INFORMATION: 
• See attachments for August 2023 Clinical Services Report for services provided by our in-house 

mental health partner, Provident. Provident provides office hours at both our Hillsboro and Arnold 
locations, as well as telemedicine to assist Jefferson County residents in need of mental health 
services. 

• See attachments for flyers from Compass Healthcare regarding resources for Survivors of Suicide, 
Virtual Grief Support Groups, EMS Support Groups, Mobile Crisis Response and Crisis Line Services 
available to Jefferson County residents. 

• JCHD ED will present with Jaci McReynolds at plenary session of the Missouri State Public Health 
Conference in September regarding JCHD’s integration of the State’s Foundational Public Health 
Model. 

1.6 AGENCY RECOGNITION AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR BOARD ENGAGEMENT 
• Fifth Annual Jefferson County Rotary Clubs Benefit Golf Tournament, Friday, October 13, 2023 at 

Crystal Highlands Golf Club. We are looking for sponsors, teams and silent auction baskets.  For 
more information visit: www.jeffcorotary.org.  Proceeds support low cost and no cost healthcare 
services from JCHD’s Mobile Wellness Team. 

http://www.jeffcorotary.org/


Site Impact Dashboard
August 2023

641

44

61

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Jeff Co

Session Attendance

Miss Cancel <24 hrs Kept

639 007 540 103

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

2023
Jeff Co

YTD Impact Hours

69

77

71

54

89

93

82

103

0

0

0

00

2

3

2

64

70

68

61

70

74

69

64

18

2

33

34

8

8

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Jan
2023

Jeff Co

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

July

August

Impact Hours by Month

Funded

Unfunded

0 0 0 0 1 10 0 0 0
7

1 1 2 2 1 2
67

2 3
7

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July August

Incomplete Documentation Contact Record

Progress Note

MHAs

Tx Plans

2023 Impact Hours Dashboards (r 7-19-23) Site Dashboard



Site Impact Dashboard
August 2023

182 182

210

182
200 200

182

210

73 81 75
54

92 92
82

92

0

200

400

Jeff Co
Jan

Jeff Co
Feb

Jeff Co
Mar

Jeff Co
Apr

Jeff Co
May

Jeff Co
June

Jeff Co
July

Jeff Co
August

Impact Appointments
Psychiatric Services Only

Target # Appts

# Appts Achieved

1548

641
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Jeff Co

YTD Impact 
Appointments
Psych Services Only

774 645

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Jeff Co

YTD Impact Hours
Counseling Only

91 91

105

91

100 100

91

105

69

79
74

56

89
93

82

103

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Jeff Co
Jan

Jeff Co
Feb

Jeff Co
Mar

Jeff Co
Apr

Jeff Co
May

Jeff Co
June

Jeff Co
July

Jeff Co
August

Impact Hours
Counseling Only

Impact Hour Target

Impact Hours Achieved

2023 Impact Hours Dashboards (r 7-19-23) Site Dashboard







988
OR

 888-237-4567 

Mobile Crisis Response

Clinicians available 24/7/365

Provides Immediate person-

centered assistance

Available to respond to any

behavioral health and/or

substance use crisis

Person-centered and trauma

informed

Debrief Support

Virtual Grief Groups

Mobile Crisis Response Services



 

 

You’re Invited to Join Us Virtually!  
Date To Be Determined 

Time: 3PM-5PM 

Please call Lisa: 573-612-9069 or Kendall: 816-406-9108 

Benefits of the SOSA Group: 

• Comfort of Your Home 

• Peer Facilitator along with Clinical Facilitator 

• Provides Community Resources  

• Opportunity to Gain Additional Coping Skills 

• Provides a Safe Non-Judgmental Zone  

• Gives Hope 

 

SOSA Group is Provided by:  

 

 
 

 

 

SURVIVORS OF 

SUICIDE ATTEMPTS 
 



VIRTUAL GRIEF GROUPS

• Free, virtual grief groups

• We hope you can join us for all six 
sessions, but if you’re only able to 
join for a few that’s fine too

• Wednesdays from 12 - 1 pm and 
6 - 7pm

• Provided by master’s level 
behavioral health clinicians.

• Topics include: Self-care, positive 
affirmations honoring loved ones 
and more

• The zoom link will be provided 
once you RSVP:  

12 - 1 pm cboyer@compasshn.org 

 6 - 7 pm lmcbride@compasshn.org



Someone to talk to: The Compass Health Crisis Line has clinicians
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, including weekends and
holidays. The Compass Health Crisis Line serves 25 counties within our
catchment area.
Someone to Respond: Compass Health offers Mobile Crisis Response 24
hours a day, 7 days a week, including weekends and holidays. Crisis
Response Clinicians are located in 4 regions within our catchment area.
Somewhere to go: Compass Health has four Behavioral Health Crisis
Centers that are open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, including
weekends and holidays. Our BHCCs are located in Wentzville, Rolla,
Jefferson City, and Raymore.

Our goal is to provide immediate support to individuals who are
experiencing a behavioral health crisis, or other behavioral health needs.
EMS may connect callers directly to the Compass Health Crisis Line where
our Crisis Line Clinicians will be able to de-escalate, assess for safety,
provide safety planning as needed, and offer in-the-moment support. Crisis
Line Clinicians can dispatch Mobile Crisis to callers that will benefit from
immediate in-person support.

Crisis Response Clinicians are available 24/7 to co-respond with EMS to
provide in-person support, de-escalation, assess for safety, provide safety
planning, debriefing as needed, in-the-moment support, and connect
individuals to beneficial services and resources. Crisis Response Clinicians
can provide ongoing support while working to connect the caller to long-
term services.

EM
S O

UT
RE

AC
H

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH CRISIS CENTERS
833-356-2427 or dial 988

tel:18333562427
tel:18333562427


9/6/2023

VACCINES FOR CHILDREN PROGRAM (VFC)
VFC Site Visit Follow-Up Plan
Site Visit #:09062023MOA099002

Provider PIN:MOA099002
Doses Distributed in 2022: 946

Cost of Doses Distributed in 2022: $71,020.79
 
 
PASCAL GUADREAULT MD
JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
1818 LONEDELL RD
Arnold, MO 63010
 
 
Dear PASCAL GUADREAULT MD,
 
Thank you for taking time to participate in the Vaccines for Children (VFC)
Program VFC Site Visit on 09/06/2023. We hope you found the visit to be
informative and educational.
 
Please take a few minutes to review the attached site visit summary, which
contains important information on follow-up actions and timelines for completion.
Also included is a list of the remaining VFC Program requirements and
recommendations assessed during your visit.
 
All requested documentation should be submitted by Email to Brooke Poskin at
Brooke.poskin@health.mo.gov.
 
On behalf of the Missouri Immunization Program, I thank you for your
participation in the VFC Program and your continued efforts to ensure that all
children are fully immunized. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have
any questions.
 

Sincerely,

Brooke Poskin
Missouri Immunization Program
930 Wildwood
PO Box 570
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102
(573) 751-6124
Brooke.poskin@health.mo.gov

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 1 of 9



1.

•

2.

•

3.

REVIEWER’S SITE VISIT NOTES

There are no notes for this visit.

REQUIRED FOLLOW-UP ACTIONS
Below is a list of actions that are required to be taken as a result of your recent
site visit. This list, along with a timeline for completion, is intended to support your
office/clinic with successfully implementing the VFC Program. Please also review
the full list of 2023-2024 VFC Compliance Visit Requirements &
Recommendations at the end of this document.
 

CHANGES TO KEY STAFF
All changes in key staff must be communicated to the immunization
program in the manner and timeframe defined by the immunization
program. Key staff include: the medical director or equivalent who signed
the provider agreement, the vaccine coordinator, and the backup
coordinator. VFC providers are required to ensure that all key staff are fully
trained on VFC program requirements at all times. All training must be
documented.

 
Due Date: Not Applicable
Required Action: The Immunization Program will reach out to
you in the coming weeks regarding progress with meeting this
program requirement 

 
BORROWING REASONS
VFC providers are expected to maintain an adequate inventory of vaccine
for all patients served. It is the responsibility of the provider to appropriately
schedule and place vaccine orders and to rotate vaccine stock properly to
ensure timely use of short-dated vaccine. Borrowing of vaccine between
private and public inventories must be a rare, unplanned occurrence and
CANNOT serve as a replacement system for a provider’s privately
purchased vaccine inventory. All instances of borrowing must be properly
documented and reported, and borrowed doses must be replaced.

 
Due Date: 10/06/2023
Required Action: In accordance with CDC Requirements,
submit new or revised protocols for managing vaccine ordering
and inventory and other internal processes to prevent routine
borrowing. 

 
TEMPERATURE-MONITORING DEVICE TYPE
All VFC providers must use continuous temperature monitoring devices
(i.e., digital data loggers) to monitor vaccines administered to VFC-eligible
children. Routine review and accessibility of temperature data are critical
for determining whether vaccine has been properly stored and for
assessing usability of vaccine involved in a temperature excursion. To meet

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 2 of 9



•

•

•

VFC program requirements, the device must also be equipped with:

A temperature probe
An active temperature display that can be easily read from outside of
the unit
The capacity for continuous monitoring and recording the data to be
routinely downloaded

Additional recommended features for these devices that may be required
by your Immunization Program:

Alarm for out-of-range temperatures
Current, minimum, and maximum temperatures display
Low battery indicator
Accuracy of +/- 1°F (0.5°C)
Memory storage of at least 4,000 readings
User programmable logging interval (or reading rate) recommended
at a maximum time interval of every 30 minutes
Use of a probe that best reflects the temperature of the vaccine (such
as a buffered probe)

 
Due Date: 09/20/2023
Required Action: In accordance with CDC Requirements,
submit a digital data logger report with at least two weeks of
temperature readings. vfc-helmer 1

 
Due Date: 09/20/2023
Required Action: In accordance with CDC Requirements,
submit a digital data logger report with at least two weeks of
temperature readings. private - helmer 2

 
Due Date: 09/20/2023
Required Action: In accordance with CDC Requirements,
submit a digital data logger report with at least two weeks of
temperature readings. freezer GE

 

Remaining 2023-2024 CDC VFC Compliance Visit
Requirements & Recommendations
ELIGIBILITY & DOCUMENTATION
CHANGES TO KEY STAFF
All changes in key staff must be communicated to the immunization program in
the manner and timeframe defined by the immunization program. Key staff
include: the medical director or equivalent who signed the provider agreement,

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 3 of 9



the vaccine coordinator, and the backup coordinator. VFC providers are required
to ensure that all key staff are fully trained on VFC program requirements at all
times. All training must be documented.
 

VFC ELIGIBILITY CATEGORIES
VFC providers must possess a working knowledge of ALL VFC eligibility criteria
and use those criteria to screen children prior to administering VFC vaccines. To
receive VFC vaccine, a patient must be under the age of 19 and must be at least
one of the following: (1) Medicaid-eligible; (2) uninsured (i.e., child has no
health insurance); (3) underinsured (i.e., child has health insurance, but does
not have cover for any or certain vaccines– underinsured children may only
receive VFC vaccines in any FQHC/RHC or deputized VFC provider offices and
may only receive vaccines not covered by insurance; and (4) American Indian
OR Alaska Native (AI/AN).
 

BILLING PRACTICES
VFC providers must adhere to proper billing practices for vaccine administration
fees and clearly understand that VFC vaccine is provided at no cost to either the
VFC provider or eligible children. At no time should billing occur for the cost of
VFC vaccine. When administering VFC vaccine, providers should never bill two
different “payers” (i.e., patient, Medicaid, insurance) for the same vaccine
administration fee amount. For Medicaid-eligible children, Medicaid should be
billed for the vaccine administration fee. For all other VFC-eligible populations,
the patient may be billed for an amount within the state/territory cap established
by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS); however, patients
cannot be turned away or reported to collections for inability to pay the
administration fee. Effective January 1, 2020, providers who choose to bill for the
vaccine administration fee of a non-Medicaid, VFC-eligible child after the date of
service may issue only a single bill to the patient within 90 days of vaccine
administration.
 

VACCINE ADMINISTRATION FEE
The VFC provider’s vaccine administration fee for non-Medicaid, VFC-eligible
children must not exceed the state/territory vaccine administration fee cap
established by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS). For current
fee caps, refer to www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2012-11-06/pdf/2012-26507.pdf.
 

ELIGIBILITY SCREENING & DOCUMENTATION
VFC providers must screen for and document VFC eligibility at EACH
immunization visit. Documentation must include the date of the visit and the
child’s specific eligibility category. VFC providers must use screening results to
ensure that only VFC-eligible children receive VFC vaccine and that
administration fees are billed for as appropriate. Eligibility status must be readily
available to staff administering vaccine prior to selecting which vaccine stock to

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 4 of 9

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/FR-2012-11-06/pdf/2012-26507.pdf


use. Comprehensive certificates are no longer allowed in the VFC program.
 

VACCINE DOSE DOCUMENTATION
In accordance with federal law, VFC providers must maintain immunization
records that include ALL of the following elements: (1) name of vaccine
administered; (2) date vaccine was administered; (3) date VIS was given; (4)
publication date of VIS; (5) name of vaccine manufacturer; (6) vaccine lot
number; (7) name and title of person who administers the vaccine; (8) address of
clinic where vaccine was administered.
 

RECORD RETENTION
Maintain compliance with all awardee-specific policies and procedures
 

VACCINE MANAGEMENT PLAN
VFC providers must maintain and implement a Vaccine Management Plan for
routine and emergency vaccine management. The plan should consist of clearly
written, detailed, and up-to-date storage and handling standard operating
procedures (SOPs). The plan must contain the name and contact information for
the current vaccine coordinator and backup coordinator; proper storage and
handling practices; shipping and receiving procedures; emergency procedures
for equipment malfunctions, power failures, or natural disasters; vaccine ordering
procedures; inventory control (e.g., stock rotation); procedures for handling
vaccine loss and waste; and staff training/documentation on vaccine
management, storage, and handling. The plan must be reviewed/updated
annually or more frequently if changes occur. A review date and signature are
required on all plans in order to validate they are current.
 

VIS & VAERS
VFC providers are required to distribute the current VIS each time a vaccine
dose is administered and to maintain records in accordance with the National
Childhood Vaccine Injury Act (NCVIA), which includes reporting clinically
significant adverse events to the Vaccine Adverse Event Reporting System
(VAERS). For a list of current VISs, visit: http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/vis/.
 

Borrowing Documentation / Reasons
VFC Providers are expected to maintain an adequate inventory of vaccine for all
patients served - it is the responsibility of the Provider to appropriately schedule
and place vaccine orders and ensure vaccine stock is properly rotated to ensure
timely use of short-dated vaccine. Borrowing of vaccine between private and
public inventories must be a rare, unplanned occurrence and CANNOT serve as
a replacement system for a Provider's privately purchased vaccine inventory. All
instances of borrowing must be properly documented, reported and replaced.
 

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 5 of 9

http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/vis/


STORAGE & HANDLING
STORAGE UNIT GRADE [Recommendation]
CDC recommends the following vaccine storage unit types (in order of
preference): pharmaceutical-grade stand-alone or combination units (preferred);
household/commercial stand-alone units; household/commercial combination
units using the refrigerator section only. Use of the freezer compartment of a
household combination unit is discouraged.
 

TEMPERATURE-MONITORING DEVICE IN THE UNIT
VFC providers MUST have a working calibrated temperature monitoring device
with a current and valid certificate of calibration testing. All certificates of
calibration testing must contain the model number, serial number, date of
calibration, and measurement results indicating that the unit passed testing.
Documentation that uncertainty is within suitable limits (recommended
uncertainty = +/-1 degree Fahrenheit or 0.5 degree Celsius) and the name of the
device are recommended but not required.
 

CERTIFICATE OF CALIBRATION TESTING
Certificates of calibration testing provide confidence that the temperature
monitoring device is measuring temperatures accurately. All units storing VFC
vaccines MUST have a calibrated temperature monitoring device with a current
and valid certificate of calibration testing. All certificates of calibration testing
must contain the model number, serial number, date of calibration, and
measurement results indicating the unit passed testing. Documentation that
uncertainty is within suitable limits (recommended uncertainty = +/-1 degree
Fahrenheit or 0.5 degree Celsius) and the name of the device are recommended
but not required.
 

TEMPERATURE-MONITORING DEVICE PLACEMENT
The temperature monitoring device (or probe) must be placed in a central area of
the storage unit directly with the vaccines to properly measure vaccine
temperature. Devices should not be placed in the doors, near or against the
walls, close to vents, or on the floor of the unit. For pharmaceutical-grade units
with a built-in temperature monitoring device or a dedicated port for a probe that
is not in the center of the storage unit, consult your immunization program for
guidance on placement.
 

TEMPERATURE DOCUMENTATION
Vaccines must be stored at appropriate temperatures as described in the
manufacturer package inserts at all times. The acceptable temperature ranges
vary by vaccine type, and the range is 36° F and 46° F (2° C and 8° C), for
refrigerated vaccines and -58° F and +5° F (-50° C and -15° C) for frozen
vaccines. Exposure to temperatures outside of the ranges detailed in the

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 6 of 9



package inserts could affect vaccine viability and, ultimately, leave children
unprotected against vaccine-preventable diseases. To maintain awareness of
storage unit temperatures and ensure that vaccines are being stored at
appropriate temperatures at all times, VFC Providers are required to monitor and
document temperatures for all vaccine storage units AT LEAST once per day.
Temperature documentation must contain: (1) at least one minimum/maximum
temperature readings per day, (2) the date and time of each reading and (3) the
name (or initials) of the person who assessed and recorded the readings.
 

TEMPERATURE EXCURSIONS
The provider must document all excursions and actions taken including the
following: (1) Quarantine and label vaccines as "DO NOT USE"; (2) Place
vaccines in a unit where they can be stored under proper conditions (3) Contact
the Immunization Program to report an excursion; and (4) Contact the vaccine
manufacturer to obtain documentation supporting the usability of the vaccine
 

VACCINE PLACEMENT [Recommendation]
Vaccines should be stored in their original manufacturer (or CDC centralized
distributor) packaging. They should be placed in the middle of the
pharmaceutical-grade unit with space between the vaccines and the side/back of
the unit to allow cold air to circulate. Vaccines SHOULD NOT be stored in the
doors, vegetable bins, or on the floor of the unit, or under or near cooling vents,
and there should not be any food in the unit. Unless otherwise specified by the
manufacturer of a pharmaceutical-grade unit, water bottles (for refrigerators) or
frozen water bottles (for freezers) should be placed throughout each storage unit
to: (1) stabilize or extend temperatures during a power outage and (2) serve as
physical blocks preventing the placement of vaccines in areas of the unit at
higher risk for temperature excursions (such as in doors, vegetable bins, floor, or
near/under cooling vents).
 

DISCONNECTION FROM POWER SOURCE
VFC providers must take steps to protect the power source for all vaccine
storage equipment by having clear warning labels on both the plug and the circuit
breaker associated with all vaccine storage units. Large hospitals and healthcare
systems can meet this requirement by demonstrating they have comprehensive
policies and standard operating procedures to prevent vaccine storage units from
being disconnected from the power supply
 

DORM-STYLE UNITS
Dorm- and bar-style units are prohibited for vaccine storage. Vaccines stored in
dorm-style units are considered nonviable and must be returned to the
centralized distributor. CDC recommends the following vaccine storage unit types
(in order of preference): pharmaceutical-grade stand-alone or combination units
(preferred), household/commercial stand-alone units, or household/commercial

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 7 of 9



combination units using the refrigerator section only. Use of the freezer
compartment of a household combination unit is discouraged.
 

STORAGE UNIT SPACE AVAILABILITY
VFC Providers must have sufficient storage space to accommodate vaccine
stock at the busiest time of year (including anticipated new vaccines) without
overcrowding.
 

EXPIRED VACCINES
Vaccines should be rotated weekly and whenever a new shipment arrives so that
longer-dated vaccines are stored behind shorter-dated vaccines. If vaccines
expire, they can no longer be stored in the same storage unit with viable
vaccines. They must be placed in a container or bag clearly labeled "Do not use"
and separated from viable vaccines to prevent inadvertent use. Expired vaccine
must be returned to the centralized distributor within six months of expiration.
 

BACK-UP TEMPERATURE MONITORING DEVICE
VFC Providers must have a readily available continuous temperature monitoring
backup device (e.g. digital data logger) with a current and valid certificate of
calibration testing. To prevent the certificates of calibration testing of the primary
and backup devices from expiring at the same time, the date of calibration testing
(or issue date) of the backup device should be different from the date of
calibration testing (or issue date) of the primary device.
 

PREPARATION OF VACCINE [Recommendation]
"CDC recommends preparing vaccines immediately prior to administration to
assure viability of vaccine and prevent vaccine wastage. Vaccines that are not
administered immediately are at risk of exposure to temperatures outside of the
required range, which can affect vaccine viability and, ultimately, can leave
children unprotected against vaccine-preventable diseases.
 

EMERGENCY TRANSPORT OF VACCINE [Recommendation]
CDC recommends providers keep on hand or have ready access to the supplies
needed for emergency transport. Appropriate materials include:

Portable vaccine refrigerator/freezer units (preferred option)
Qualified containers and packouts
Hard-sided insulated containers or Styrofoam™ (Use in conjunction with
the Packing Vaccines for Transport during Emergencies† tool. This system
is only to be used in an emergency.)
Coolant materials such as phase change materials (PCMs) or frozen water
bottles that can be conditioned to 4° C to 5° C
Insulating materials such as bubble wrap and corrugated cardboard—

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 8 of 9



enough to form two layers per container
TMDs for each container

 

INVENTORY
INVENTORY COMPARISON
VFC Providers must order and stock routine vaccines in accordance with their
most recent provider profile in order to prevent missed vaccination opportunities.
Having sufficient amounts of all stocks prevents the inadvertent use of VFC
vaccines for non-VFC-eligible patients and vice versa.
 

ACIP-RECOMMENDED VACCINES
VFC providers agree to comply with immunization schedules, dosages, and
contraindications that are established by the ACIP for the vaccines identified and
agreed upon in the provider agreement and provider profile UNLESS:

1. In the VFC provider's medical judgment, and in accordance with accepted
medical practice, the VFC provider deems such compliance to be medically
inappropriate for the individual child

2. The particular requirements contradict state law, including laws pertaining
to religious and/or other exemptions.

The VFC program entitles children to the following vaccines: DTaP, hepatitis A,
hepatitis B, Hib, HPV, influenza, meningococcal, MMR, pneumococcal, polio,
rotavirus, Tdap/TD and varicella. VFC providers are also required to ensure that
VFC-eligible children have access to nonroutine vaccines as needed.
 

SEPARATION OF STOCK
To ensure that VFC vaccines are administered only to VFC-eligible children, VFC
providers serving both VFC and non-VFC-eligible children must maintain vaccine
inventories in such a way that they can clearly differentiate public stock from
private stock.
 

Printed Date: 9/6/2023Page 9 of 9



  

 

Jefferson County Health Department 

405 Main Street, Hillsboro, MO 63050 

Phone: 636-797-3737    Fax: 636-797-4631 

www.jeffcohealth.org 

Jefferson County Health Department will champion positive health 
outcomes and behaviors through innovative programs and community 

engagement. 

 

AUGUST CLINICAL BOARD REPORT 

 

Month Reporting:  AUGUST 2023             

Date: 09/25/23 

Reported By: M. Melissa Parmeley, Clinical Services Manager 

CLINICAL SECTION 

- PROGRAMS 

FPHS 

CONTRACT/ GRANT MONTHLY UPDATE 

FAMILY PLANNING 

- Title X 

- The Right Time 

- Show Me Healthy Women 

- Wise Woman 

 

Maternal, Child & Family Health 

Communicable Disease  

Access to Care 

 

Title X; The Right Time (TRT) 

Show Me Healthy Women (SMHW) 

Wise Woman (WW) 

The JCHD Family Planning Clinic saw 94 unduplicated patients 

during the month of August.  

 

Title X requires a Cost Analysis to be completed at specified 

intervals by the Missouri Family Health Council (MFHC). JCHD 

completed the cost analysis for the Family Planning clinic and 

assessed impacts associated with the cost analysis. Changes to the 

fee schedule because of this cost analysis will be placed into effect 

in October.  

 

The TRT (The Right Time) Education and Outreach RN position has 

been filled and the new RN started in September.  

  

GENERAL CLINIC 

- Immunizations 

- Tuberculosis (TB) 

- Lead 

- Wellness Labs 

 

Vaccines for Children (VFC/317) 

Adult Immunization Contract (AIG) 

EPA Superfund Lead Health Education 

 

August was a an extremely busy month for our Tuberculosis 

Program: 

Active Cases: 2 

Rule out TB: 2 



- Sexually Transmitted 

Diseases (STD/STI) 

- Perinatal Hepatitis B 

- Child Care Health 

Consultation (CCHC) 

 

Maternal, Child & Family Health 

Communicable Disease  

Access to Care 

Injury Prevention 

CHIP CORE Public Health  

Program Support 23-24 

Potential LTBI with investigation: 5 

LTBI: 10 

Current Rule Out Active TB: 7 

Historical investigations: 3 

Annual Statements: 1 

Closed Cases: 9 

 

A new active case in August led to contact investigation for 250 

contacts that needed TB (PPD or QFT testing).  Numbers continued 

to increase through discovery throughout the month. Case 

investigation began on 08/17/23 and continues into September. 

From this contact investigation so far, we have had 7 positive 

results, 4 of which will start with DOT (Direct Observation Therapy), 

1 was ruled out, and 2 under further evaluation. This was a massive 

response by the clinical team that led to numerous additional clinics 

being held both off-site and at the Hillsboro office location to be 

able to test 153 people for TB during the month. The clinical teams 

including mobile wellness, testing, community, Office Support, and 

Nursing all worked together to complete this enormous task. 

Education material on TB is attached to this report.  

 

COMMUNITY CLINIC 

- Mobile Wellness 

- Communicable Disease 

Testing 

- Prevention 

- Community Clinics 

- Project Life Saver 

 

Maternal, Child & Family Health 

Communicable Disease  

Access to Care 

Injury Prevention 

Local Public Health Disparities; 

Program Support 23-24 

ELC; AIG 

Missouri Mini Grant Prevent Ed 

 

 

The JCHD Mobile Wellness Program saw 100 patients in the month 

of August.  The program was out 18 out of 19 workdays and visited 

3 residential facilities, 2 homeless events, 5 school registrations, and 

attended the Drug Overdose Awareness event at the Jefferson 

County Justice Center.  We provided the usual lab services, POC 

testing, treated individuals for hypertension, UTI’s and performed a 

total of 37 physicals.  August can be a very busy month with school 

starting up again and the team was super flexible and willing to put 

in the work to get things done.  The program is still working from 

one of the Sprinter vans, it is a very small space, but they are doing 

a great job of making it work. As previously mentioned, the prior 

mobile Wellness RV is being prepared to be sold and the team is 

evaluating funding needs for a new RV for the program.  

 



  

 

Jefferson County Health Department 

405 Main Street, Hillsboro, MO 63050 

Phone: 636-797-3737    Fax: 636-797-4631 

www.jeffcohealth.org 

Jefferson County Health Department will champion positive health 
outcomes and behaviors through innovative programs and community 

engagement. 

 

August was a very busy month for our teams with many community 

events and Back To School Fairs. The JCHD Nursing and community 

teams attended the following community-based events in August: 

• Grace Day Back To School Festival at Zion Lutheran Church 

on Saturday 08/05/23. There were 250 families and 1,249 

people who attended the event. We provided information 

on the Mobile Wellness Program, Dental Program, Lead 

Program, and Immunizations.  

• Northwest School District Back to School Fair on Tuesday 

08/08/23. 

• Grandview School District Back to School Fair on Thursday 

08/07/23.  

• Cedar Hill Peace Pantry Back to School Event on Saturday 

08/12/23. 

• Provided Rabies Vaccines to Jefferson College students in 

the Veterinary Technician program on 08/14/23 and 

08/21/23. 

• Senior Expo on 08/23/23 and provided 46 blood pressure 

checks at the event.  

 

The JCHD mobile team prepared a poster for the annual Mobile 

Healthcare Conference that was held in Pittsburgh on September 9 

– 12th.  The report for that conference and review of the poster will 

be on next month’s board report.  

 

 

 



DENTAL 

- Pediatric Mobile Dental 

- Sealant 

- Adult Mobile Dental 

Maternal, Child & Family Health 

Access to Care 

Sealant and Tele dentistry  

CHIP CORE Public Health 

 

The pediatric Dental Program prepared for return to the school 

systems in August.  The teams attended several back-to-school 

festivals to provide dental education during the month. The first on-

site dental services for the school year will be provided at the 

Sunrise school system after Labor Day in September.  

 

The Dental Program saw 114 patients in August and provided 404 

procedures during the month.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

















Community Services Board Report- September 2023 

Jefferson County Health Department will champion
 positive health outcomes and behaviors through 

innovative programs and community engagement.

The Community Services Department consists of our Communicable Disease Prevention Team,
Environmental Public Health Team, Public Health Preparedness Planner and the Special

Healthcare Needs Team.  This team manages the non-clinical public health programs.

(Analytics and Updates from Auguts 2023)

October 1, 2023, begins the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Respiratory
Season.  We will begin posting weekly respiratory reports on the second week of October as
well as publish a respiratory dashboard on our website.  This dashboard will include
influenza and COVID-19 data.
There was one confirmed Lyme Disease case investigated in August.  The individual did
report traveling when they were bit by a tick.  There is no concern this was a locally acquired
infection.
Malaria is now a listed condition on the Communicable Disease report due to the recent US
cases. To date there have been 7 locally acquired cases in Florida, 1 in Texas and 1 in
Maryland. At this time, Jefferson County, MO does not have any suspected or confirmed
cases.

https://emergency.cdc.gov/han/2023/han00496.asp?ACSTrackingID=USCDC_511-
DM111659&ACSTrackingLabel=HAN%20496%20-
%20General%20Public&deliveryName=USCDC_511-DM111659

Respiratory Syncytial Virus (RSV)
RSV is not a reportable condition in Missouri; therefore, providers and laboratories do not
send positive results to Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services or JCHD.  
Hospital data does show an increase in case in southwestern US, if the virus follows
previous trends cases are expected to increase through the northwest within the next 2-
3 months.
CDC estimates RSV causes approximately: 

58,000-80,000 hospitalizations and 100-300 deaths in children under 5 each year.
60,000-100,000 hospitalizations and 6,000-10,000 deaths in adults 65 years and
older.

RSV is PREVENTABLE!T Talk to your medical provider to determine the best preventive
options for you and your family.

Communicable Disease Prevention:  

Programs: Communicable Disease Investigation, Vector Control, Animal Bite Investigations 
Funding Sources: Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) MO DHSS Contract, Epidemiological and
Laboratory Capacity Enhancing Detection Expansion (ELC-EXP) MO DHSS Contract.

Mission: Capacity to prevent and stop the spread of disease through strategies such as surveillance,
investigation, education, and interventions.

Foundation of Public Health Module Areas of Capability and Expertise:



Communicable Disease Surveillance Summary Report

All data and information are conditional and may change as more reports are received.
Case definitions are established by the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services’ (DHSS) Communicable Disease Investigation
Reference Manual. The totals reflect the number of confirmed and probable cases reported; suspect cases are not included.
Data is reported in epidemiologic weeks established by the CDC’s Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report (MMWR). The MMWR week starts
on a Sunday and ends on Saturday. Values for MMWR week range from 1to 53, although most years consist of 52 weeks. The 2023 MMWR
calendar began on January 1, 2023.
Case date may be based on the onset date, diagnosis date, specimen date, or test date.
Excluded from this report are Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Influenza, and COVID-19.
Jefferson County Health Department monitors all reportable disease cases year-round. Figures1. and 2. include detailed views of diseases or
conditions that may be of importance during the time of year this report is published. Variables such as outbreaks or the seasonality of
communicable diseases may affect the number of cases per month and call for a more in-depth look. Seasonal change in the incidence of
infectious diseases is common.

Communicable Disease Surveillance Summary Report - August 2023
Jefferson County, Missouri
 
Notes on the Data:

Additional Sources of Information:

Jefferson County Health Department’s Covid-19Data Dashboard https://www.jeffcohealth.org/covid19-data
Jefferson County Health Department’s Influenza Data Dashboard https://www.jeffcohealth.org/flu-season-info
Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services, Communicable Disease Investigation Reference Manual:
https://health.mo.gov/living/healthcondiseases/communicable/communicabledisease/cdmanual/index.php

https://www.jeffcohealth.org/covid19-data
https://www.jeffcohealth.org/flu-season-info
https://health.mo.gov/living/healthcondiseases/communicable/communicabledisease/cdmanual/index.php




Figure 1. Campylobacteriosis
Jefferson County, Missouri 
Campylobacter infection, or campylobacteriosis, is caused by Campylobacter bacteria. Campylobacteriosis is one of the most common causes of diarrheal illness in
the United States. There are 21 Campylobacter species; however, Campylobacter jejuni and Campylobacter coli are the two species that most often infect humans.
Almost all persons infected with Campylobacter recover without any specific treatment. Antimicrobial therapy is warranted only for patients with severe disease or
those at high risk for severe disease, such as those with immune systems severely weakened from medications or other illnesses. There were 4 cases of
Campylobacteriosis reported during August 2023 in Jefferson County. During the previous 5 years, the number of cases has ranged from 0 to 8 per month. A year-to-
date alert has been noted for Campylobacteriosis. Year-to-date alerts are present when the total cases in the current year are more than one standard deviation
above the mean for the same time period in the previous five years.

Figure 2. Ehrlichiosis
Jefferson County, Missouri 
Ehrlichiosis is a tick-borne illness caused by the bacteria Ehrlichia chaffeensis and E. ewingii. These bacterial zoonotic pathogens infect animal reservoir hosts and
require a tick to be transmitted to humans. The majority of reported cases are due to infection with E. chaffeensis. In Missouri, E. chaffeensis and E. ewingii are
carried by the lone star tick. In rare cases, Ehrlichia species have been spread through blood transfusion and organ transplant. There were 6 cases of Ehrlichiosis
reported during August 2023 in Jefferson County. During the previous 5 years, the number of reported cases has ranged from 0 to 13 per month.



Environmental Public Health

5 mosquito sampling tests were positive for West Nile Virus.  A press release was issued after
the original positive test was performed.  All areas with a positive test are immediately
treated with adulticide to reduce the mosquito population.   JCHD mosquito control
program sprays unincorporated Jefferson County along with the Jefferson County Parks.  
Any positive tests collected within a municipality are reported to the city for treatment.
Animal Bite reporting clarification- The reported animal bite numbers within the
Environemtal report are accurate.  Once the investigations are completed, the information
is updated in WebSurv, Missouri DHSS Communicable Disease Reporting Software, as either
an individual case or an aggregate number. Case investigation can take weeks to complete.

Environmental Public Health: 

Programs: Food Program (Jefferson County Food Code, Food and beverages Permits, Temporary Permits,
Farmers Market Master Training, and ServSafe Certifications), Water Sample Laboratory Services (Private and
Public Water and Wells), Childcare Sanitation Inspections (CCSI), Lead Assessment and Education, and
Lodging.
Funding Sources: Childcare Sanitation Inspections (CCSI) MO DHSS Contract, Summer Food Services Program
(SFSP) MO DHSS Contract, Children's Health Insurance Program (CHIP) Health Services Initiative (HSI)-LEAD
MO DHSS Contract, CORE MO DHSS Contract, Superfund Lead Health Education and Voluntary Institutional
Control Program (VICP) MO DHSS contract, Environmental Implementation of Grading System and
Advancement on Conformance with Program Standards (GSAC) FDA contract

Mission: Capacity to reduce harmful exposures and foster safe and health environments that protect
communities.



Environmental Public Health



Public Health Preparedness and Special Healthcare Needs

A Mom called to say her child’s intense physical therapy is working he is now able to walk a few
steps and they are now able to stand for short periods of time.  We are continuing to find
additional physical therapy equipment for this family.

Linkage to Medical, Behavioral, and Community Resources: Examples of resource navigation and
case management provided to participants for both programs in the month of August:

JCHD contracts with MO Department of Health and Senior Services (MO DHSS) to provide resource
navigation to connect participants to providers.  MO DHSS reimburses providers for services and JCHD
for staffing expenses through the ABI and CYSHCN contracts.  No JCHD funds are utilized for this
program. 

Programs: Adult Brain Injury and Children and Youth with Special Healthcare Needs Service
Coordination and Public Health Preparedness inclusion planning

Mission: Capacity to develop a strong network of partners with diverse expertise and resources to
build a strong foundation for community health.

Funding Sources: Adult Brain Injury Program Service Coordination (ABI) Missouri Regions F and G,
Children and Youth with Special Healthcare Needs Service Coordination (CYSHCN) Missouri Regions
10 and 11, and Epidemiological and Laboratory Capacity Enhancing Detection Expansion (ELC-EXP)
MO DHSS Contract

During the month of August 2023, the JCHD Planner participated in the following:
Homeless and Essential Needs Outreach Event
Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) International Conference.

The Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) program is a community partnership of law
enforcement, mental health and addiction professionals, individuals who live with
mental illness and/or addiction disorders, their families, and other partners to
improve community responses to mental health crises. 

Missouri State Emergency Management Conference
Overdose Awareness Activates and Walk

Public Health Preparedness (PHP) - Emergency Preparedness and Response: 

Funding Sources: Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) MO DHSS Contract, Cities
Readiness Initiative (CRI) MO DHSS Contract, Epidemiological and Laboratory Capacity Enhancing
Detection Expansion (ELC-EXP) MO DHSS Contract.

Mission: Capacity to promote ongoing community resilience and preparedness, issue and enforce
public health orders, share information with key partners and the general public, and lead the
health and medical response to emergencies
Programs: Public Health Preparedness Planning and Response, Training and Exercises, and Project
Public Health Ready (PPHR) Accreditation



Health Communications Board Report- September 2023 

Jefferson County Health Department will champion
 positive health outcomes and behaviors through 

innovative programs and community engagement.

(Analytics from August 2023)

Homelessness & Essential Needs Outreach Event: Held at the First Baptist Chruch of
Festus in early August. One of our team members organized the event and coordinated all
the services and vendors who attended. Over 30 unhoused individuals attended and were
offered resources, a hot meal, clothing, vaccines, dental care, wellness services & overdose
education/Narcan. 

Foundational Areas: Chronic Disease Prevention, Injury Prevention, Linkage to Resources, Maternal,
Child, & Family Health
Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Community Partnership Development, Emergency
Preparedness & Response

Arnold Senior Expo; Provided 50+ community members with information on how to
properly dispose of unused/expired medications, SUD resources, education on Sharps
Disposal Program & handed out a few boxes of Narcan. 
Meeting with the Director of Jefferson County Libraries: Discussed potential partnerships
with free period supplies to community and resource navigation to clients that utilize their
facilities.
Overdose Awareness Week: Manning informational table with SUD resources & Narcan,
hand out Narcan kits to event participants & develop relationships with Drug Court
members to help brainstorm ways to support/partner with each other. 
Hillsboro Farmer’s Market: Smoothie Bike brought to the market and about 20 adults and
kids used the smoothie bike and received education.  

Community Engagement: Several members of health comms team were out in the
community at various events and locations working with the public directly providing
services, learning more about specific population needs, develop new programs, etc.  

Foundational Areas: Chronic Disease Prevention, Injury Prevention, Maternal, Child, & Family
Health, Linkage to Resources, 
Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Community Partnership Development, Emergency
Preparedness & Response

Car Seat Program: A total of 4 car seats were given out at the offices and at community
events. An additional 6 car seats were checked for proper installation by our certified car seat
technician.

Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Organizational Administrative Competencies
Foundational Areas: Maternal, Child, & Family Health, Injury Prevention



Workforce Development: Managed recruiting, interviewing, and onboarding process for
new employees. Planning for leadership training series. Organizing staff training and
employee licensure tracking. 

Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Community Partnership Development,
Organizational Administrative Competencies, Accountability & Performance Management,
Assessment and Surveillance, Policy Development & Support  

Updates (continued) 

PERKS Employee Engagement Committee: Drafted and finalized the September
employee wellness challenge about financial wellness based on evidence based practices.  

Foundational Areas: Linkage to Resources, Maternal, Child, & Family Health 
Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Community Partnership Development

Community Awareness Survey: Planning and drafting community awareness survey in line
with grant deliverables for funding source. Survey is focused on what the community knows
about substance use in the community, possible stigma surrounding the issue, and best ways
to educate the community about substance use, overdose, and the resources available. 

Foundational Areas: Injury Prevention, Maternal, Child, & Family Health, Linkage to Resources
Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Emergency Preparedness & Response, Assessment &
Surveillance, Organizational Administrative Competencies, Community Partnership Development

Public Health Core Competencies Project: Reviewing updates 2021 Public Health Core
Competencies from the Public Health Foundation. Creating the new staff survey to measure
current competency levels among all staff members. This information will be utilized to
create agency, position, and employee training plans to enhance our workforce. 

Foundational Capabilities: Communications, Organizational Administrative Competencies,
Accountability & Performance Management, Assessment and Surveillance



Social Media Analytics



Website Analytics



JCHD Mobile App Analytics

July 
6. 2

3

Oct 
17. 2

3

Jan
 23. 2

3

Mar 
21. 2

3

Jun 20. 2
3

Aug 8
. 2

3

Se
pt 2

2.23

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

0 

2,390
 DOWNLOADS

2 PUSH
NOTIFICATIONS

Google Business Profile Analytics

Hillsboro Office: 1,355 Interactions

Arnold Office: 1,730 Interactions



 

 JCHC Sunshine Law (Chapter 610 RSMO) Policy – updated 8/15/23 - Page 1 of 4 

 

Jefferson County Health Center 

Sunshine Law (Chapter 610 RSMo) Policy 
Draft reviewed at Board of Trustees meeting on 8/24/23, presented for final approval 9/28/23 

 
I. General Statement 

 

This policy is established to provide standardization and consistency in the application of 

Chapter 610 of the Missouri Revised Statutes commonly known as the Sunshine law. 

 
II. Purpose 

 

The purpose of this policy is to carry out the provisions of Chapter 610 with regard to the 

availability and access to records. It is public policy of the Jefferson County Health Center 

(JCHC) that records of its agencies shall be provided in accordance with the following unless 

otherwise provided by law. 

 
III. Guidelines 

 

A. Public records shall include any record retained by or of any public governmental body 

including any report, survey, memorandum or other document or study prepared and 

presented by a consultant or other professional service paid for in whole or in part by 

public funds. Such records may be in the form of paper or electronic media. The records 

shall be made available in the format in which they are stored. No interpretation of 

records will be made, nor will any record be developed pursuant to a request made under 

Chapter 610. Furthermore, pursuant to a deliberative decision-making process, the 

following records are deemed closed pursuant to 610.021 by the Jefferson County Health 

Center and shall not be released unless disclosure is otherwise required by law. 

 
1. Legal actions - causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and 

any confidential or privileged communications between a public governmental body 

or its representatives and its attorneys. However, any minutes, vote or settlement 

relating to legal actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental 

body shall be made public upon final disposition of the matter voted upon provided 

however, in matters involving the exercise of the power of eminent domain, the vote 

shall be announced or become public immediately following the action on the motion 

to authorized institution of such a legal action. Legal work product shall be considered 

a closed record; 

 
2. Leasing, purchase or sale of real estate by a public governmental body - where public 

knowledge of the transaction might adversely affect the legal consideration therefor. 

However, any minutes, vote or public record approving a contract relating to the 

leasing, purchase or sale of real estate by a public governmental body shall be made 

public upon execution of the lease, purchase or sale of the real estate; 



 

 JCHC Sunshine Law (Chapter 610 RSMO) Policy – updated 8/15/23 - Page 2 of 4 

 

 

3. Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting an employee of a public governmental body 

when personal information about the employee is discussed or recorded. However, 

any vote on a final decision, when taken by a public governmental body to hire, fire, 

promote or discipline an employee of a public governmental body must be made 

available, with a record on how each member voted, to the public within seventy-two 

hours of the close of the meeting where such action occurs; provided, however, that 

any employee so affected shall be entitled to prompt notice before such decision is 

made available to the public; 

 
4. Testing and examination materials, before the test or examination is given or, if it is to 

be given again, before so given again; 

 

5. Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf of a public 

governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee 

groups; 

 

6. Software codes for electronic data processing and documentation thereof; 

 
7. Specifications for competitive bidding until either the specifications are officially 

approved by the public governmental body or the specifications are published for 

bid; 

 

8. Sealed bids and related documents, until the earlier of either when the bids are 

opened, or all bids are accepted or all bids are rejected; 

 

9. Individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining 

to employees or applicants for employment, except that this exemption shall not 

apply to the names, positions, salaries and lengths of service officers and employees 

of public agencies once they are employed as such; 

 
10. Records which are protected from disclosure by law or privilege; 

 
11. Meetings and public records relating to scientific and technological innovations in 

which the owner has a proprietary interest. 

 

12. Existing or proposed security systems and structural plans of real property owned or 

lease by a public governmental body, and information that is voluntarily submitted 

by a nonpublic entity owning or operating an infrastructure to any public 

governmental body for use by that body to devise plans for protection of that 

infrastructure, the public disclosure of which would threaten public safety; 

 

13. Records that identify the configuration of components or the operation of a 

computer, computer system, computer network, or telecommunications network, and 

would allow unauthorized access to or unlawful disruption of a computer, computer 

system, computer network. Or telecommunications network of a public 

governmental body. 

 

14. Credit card numbers, personal identification numbers, digital certificates, physical 



 

 JCHC Sunshine Law (Chapter 610 RSMO) Policy – updated 8/15/23 - Page 3 of 4 

 

and virtual keys, access codes or authorization codes that are used to protect the 

security of electronic transactions between a public governmental body and a person 

or entity doing business with a public governmental body. 

 

15. Social security numbers. 

 

B. Jefferson County Health Center shall appoint a custodian who is responsible for the 

maintenance of all agency records. The identity and location of the custodian shall be 

made available upon request. 

 

C. Upon receipt of a request for records, the receiving JCHC staff member shall forward 

the request to JCHC’s Custodian of Records (COR) at cor@jeffcohealth.org.  JCHC’s 

COR will review the request and determine whether the COR requires assistance from 

Counsel to determine the appropriate response. The COR, with or without the assistance 

of JCHC Counsel, shall coordinate the response to the requestor.   

 
D. Requests for records will be taken during normal business hours at the Custodian of Records 

email cor@jeffcohealth.org or through USPS mail to JCHC Custodian of Records, 405 

Main Street, PO Box 437, Hillsboro, MO 63050. Normal business hours are 8:00 - 5:30 p.m. 

Monday through Friday unless otherwise established.  

 

E. Each Sunshine Requests shall be acted upon as soon as possible, but in no event later than 

the end of the third business day following the date the request is received by the custodian 

of records. 

 

F. If a Sunshine Request cannot be completed within the first three business days after 

receiving the request, the custodian shall give a detailed explanation of the cause for delay 

and the date and time that the record will be available. The period of time allowed to 

provide the document may exceed three days for reasonable cause. 

 

G. If access is denied, the records custodian shall provide, upon request, a written statement 

of the grounds for such denial citing the specific statutory provision under which access is 

denied. Such written statement shall be provided within three business days of the date of 

the request. 

mailto:cor@jeffcohealth.org
mailto:cor@jeffcohealth.org


 

 JCHC Sunshine Law (Chapter 610 RSMO) Policy – updated 8/15/23 - Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

H. JCHC shall charge a fee to provide access to or furnish copies of public records. Fees or 

charges will comply with the provisions of Chapter 610 of Missouri Revised Statues. 

Anyone or entity failing to pay for a Sunshine Request will forfeit any future Sunshine 

Request until such time as the current unpaid Sunshine Request fee is paid.  

 

I. JCHC may wave the charge or reduce the charge when the division or governmental body 

determines that such action is in the public interest because it is likely to contribute 

significantly to public understanding of the operations of activities of agency and is not 

primarily in the commercial interest of the requester. 

 
J. JCHC shall give a written estimate of the cost to produce the documents requested. JCHC 

may require the requester to pay the copying fee prior to making copies. The form of 

acceptable payment for such documents are cash, or cashier’s check, money order or 

personal check made payable to “Jefferson County Health Department.” 

 
K. Open Meetings - Notices of meetings of the JCHC board of trustees subject to the notice 

requirements of sections 610.020 and 610.022 shall provide the required notices in 

accordance with the following: 

 

1. Notices shall be prepared and posted by JCHC personnel at the following 

locations: JCHC Hillsboro Office, JCHC Arnold Office, via JCHC socials and on the 

JCHC website: www.jeffcohealth.org.  

 

2. Meetings and votes may be closed to the extent they relate to the topics designated in 

III A of this policy. 

 

3. All public votes shall be recorded as required by section 610.015 except as 

otherwise provided by law. 

http://www.jeffcohealth.org/


 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH CENTER (DBA AS JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT) 

DIRECTIVE ON UPDATE AND INFORMAITON REPORT FROM DIRECTOR OR HER DESIGNEE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Health Center (“JCHC”) Trustees need to have timely information on 

the vast and varied programs and process; and    
 

WHEREAS, the time between Board Meetings allows for a deficient of this timeliness; and  
 

WHEREAS, this information will assist all Trustees in the performance of their duties; and 
 

WHEREAS, any information in these reports will be considered confidential and a work product given 

to the Trustees to ensure they have knowledge of issues, which may be forthcoming at a meeting; and  
 

WHEREAS, this report shall not contain any legal / real-estate information, nor shall it contain any 

personnel matters; and 
 

WHEREAS, this report will be sent to the Trustees via email by the end day six (6:00) pm on the 

second (2nd) Thursday of each month; and   
 

WHEREAS, Trustees are acknowledging that such information may or may not come to fruition 

(realization) and that as such, this information will not be released to anyone else or made public and 

that any such release of information shall be at the discretion of the Director and / or as is reported at 

the Board of Trustees meetings.  
 

FURTHER, any release of information by a Trustee to anyone wherein the information is obtained 

through this Confidential Trustee Report will revoke the Trustee’s ability to get such reports in the 

future and they may be held in legal contempt. 
 

THEREFORE, be it resolved the Board of Trustees (IN WHOLE – all sign) (“JCHC”) hereby adopts this 

DIRECTIVE, which shall be updated and signed by each Trustee at each April’s Board Meeting.  

 

 

CHAIRPERSON; Timothy J. Pigg    DATE 

 

 

VICE CHAIRPERSON, Dennis M. Diehl    DATE 

 

 

SECRETARY, Tammy Stidem      DATE 

 

 

Trustee, Amber Henry      DATE 

 

 

Trustee, Susan (Suzy) L. Davis     DATE 



 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH CENTER (DBA AS JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT) 

RESOLUTION REGARDING ENACTING / ADOPTING RESOLUTIONS, POLICIES, PRODCEDURES AND / 

OR ORDANICES GOVERNING THE JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH CENTER 

RESOLUTION No: _________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Health Center (“JCHC”) Trustees will from time to time enact 

Resolutions, Polices, Procedures and / or Ordinances to ensure the County Residents’ health is at the 

forefront; and 
 

WHEREAS, these Resolutions, Polices, Procedures and / or Ordinances may also be adopted to guide 

and regulate Trustees and the Department (“JCHC”); and 
 

WHEREAS, Trustees may need further review of these Resolutions, Polices, Procedures and / or 

Ordinances before adoption.  
 

THEREFORE, be it resolved the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson County Health Center that the 

following procedure affecting the adoption of Resolutions, Polices, Procedures and / or Ordinances be 

effective immediately: 
 

1.  All Resolutions, Polices, Procedures and / or Ordinances will require a two read / two  

      meeting for Adoption with a Majority Affirmative Vote at each read / meeting.  
 

2.  Any changes to any Resolutions, Polices, Procedures and / or Ordinances from the    

     first rendition (reading) shall be made only by a Majority Affirmative Vote of the Trustees  

     and will not restart the process for adoption.  
 

3. There shall be a minimum of 24 hours between readings / meetings unless otherwise  

     agreed upon by a Majority Affirmative Vote to suspend such requirement exclusively due to  

     a Health Emergency, wherein any delay could / may cause harm to the public / person. 
 

4. The timeframe for the second read shall be decided by the Chairperson with input   

     from the Board of Trustees. 
  
5. This resolution will not pertain to pay ordinances, real-estate, legal, personnel or the   

     minutes of meetings.  
 

FURTHER, be it resolved by the Board of Trustees by a Majority Vote to enact this Resolution and shall 

be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage and approval until such time it is 

removed by Resolution and by a Majority Vote of the Board of Trustees.  

 
 

 

CHAIRPERSON, BOARD OF TRUSTEES    DATE 

 

 

 

SECRETARY, BOARD OF TRUSTEES    DATE 


	JEFFERSON COUNTY HEALTH CENTER - AGENDA September 28 2023.clc edits
	JCHD 8_15_2023 Special Meeting Board Minutes.clc edits
	08.23 Vendor Payments
	08.23 Electronic Payments Made
	10.23 EFT Pre-Approval
	08.23 Visa Expenses
	08.23 Legal Expenses
	08.23 JCHD Balance Sheet
	08.23 JCHD RE Stmt
	Executive Director's Report w attachments 9.28.23
	Executive Director's Report 8.28.23 w attachments.pdf
	1.1 Mission Moment
	1.2 Strategic Updates
	 Internal Updates

	1.3 Statutory and Regulatory Compliance Updates
	1.4 ED Public Relations Activities
	1.5 Items of Information:
	1.6 Agency Recognition and Opportunities for Board Engagement

	Site Impact Hours Dashboard - Jeff Co - August 2023 (r 9-12-23).pdf
	CLC Flyer.pdf
	Mobile Crisis Response Services Flyer (3).pdf
	Flyer for Group Version 4.pdf
	virtual-grief-group-flyer-no date.pdf
	EMS Outreach One Sheeter.pdf
	099002 09.06.23.pdf

	Clinical Services Board Report August 2023
	Clinical Services Monthly Board Report_August2023
	TB_Infection_Brochure 2005 CDC

	September 2023 CSM Report
	Health Communications Board Report (4)
	JCHC Sunshine Policy Draft for final review 9 28 23
	Directive on update information report from Director
	Resolution Enacting Adopting Resolutions Polices Procedures Ordanices

